
 

 

 
 
Notice of Meeting of 
 
PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS EXECUTIVE SUB-
COMMITTEE 

 
Monday, 15 April 2024 at 10.00 am 
 
John Meikle Room, The Deane House, Belvedere 
Road, Taunton TA1 1HE 
 
To: The members of the Property and Investments Executive Sub-Committee 
 
Chair:  Councillor Bill Revans 
   
Councillor Liz Leyshon Councillor Richard Wilkins Councillor Ros Wyke 
Councillor Sarah Wakefield   
 

 
For further information about the meeting, including how to join the meeting virtually, 
please contact democraticservicesteam@somerset.gov.uk  
 
All members of the public are welcome to attend our meetings and ask questions or 
make a statement by giving advance notice in writing or by e-mail to the Monitoring 
Officer at email: democraticservicesteam@somerset.gov.uk by 5pm on Tuesday 9 
April 2024. 
 
This meeting will be open to the public and press, subject to the passing of any 
resolution under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A: Access to Information.  
 
 

Public Agenda Pack

mailto:democraticservicesteam@somerset.gov.uk
mailto:democraticservicesteam@somerset.gov.uk


 

 

The meeting will be webcast and an audio recording made. 
 
Issued by (the Proper Officer) on 5 April 2024 

 



 

 

AGENDA 
 

Property and Investments Executive Sub-Committee - 10.00 am Monday, 15 
April 2024 

  
Public Guidance Notes contained in Agenda Annexe  

 

7 - 8 

 
Click here to join the online meeting  

 

 

 
1   Apologies for Absence  

 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
  

2   Minutes from the Previous Meeting (Pages 9 - 14) 
 
To approve the minutes from the previous meeting. 
  

3   Declarations of Interest  
 
To receive and note any declarations of interests in respect of any matters included 
on the agenda for consideration at this meeting. 
  
(The other registrable interests of Councillors of Somerset Council, arising from 
membership of City, Town or Parish Councils and other Local Authorities will 
automatically be recorded in the minutes: City, Town & Parish Twin Hatters - 
Somerset Councillors 2023 ) 
  

4   Public Question Time  
 
The Chair to advise the Committee of any items on which members of the public 
have requested to speak and advise those members of the public present of the 
details of the Council’s public participation scheme. 
  
For those members of the public who have submitted any questions or statements, 
please note, a three-minute time limit applies to each speaker and you will be asked 
to speak before Councillors debate the issue. 
  
We are now live webcasting most of our committee meetings and you are welcome 
to view and listen to the discussion. The link to each webcast will be available on the 
meeting webpage, please see details under ‘click here to join online meeting’. 
  

https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=City%20Town%20%20Parish%20Twin%20Hatters%20-%20Somerset%20Councill&ID=378&RPID=663299
https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=City%20Town%20%20Parish%20Twin%20Hatters%20-%20Somerset%20Councill&ID=378&RPID=663299


 

 

5   Review performance indicators for the Investment Portfolio and main risks to 
the programme (Pages 15 - 20) 
 
To receive a report on the key performance indicators for the asset management of 
the Investment Property Portfolio. 
  

6   Revision to the scope of the Investment portfolio (Pages 21 - 28) 
 
To consider governance arrangements and additions and removal of property from 
the investment portfolio. 
  
  

Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 
 

29 - 30 

PLEASE NOTE: Although the main report for this item not confidential, supporting 
appendices available to Members contain exempt information and are therefore 
marked confidential – not for publication.  At any point if Members wish to discuss 
information within this appendix then the Executive will be asked to agree the 
following resolution to exclude the press and public:   
  
Exclusion of the Press and Public 
To consider passing a resolution having been duly proposed and seconded and in 
accordance with Regulation 4 of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012, that the press and 
public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of those parts of this 
agenda item which relate to exempt information on the grounds that it is likely, in view 
of the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if 
members of the press and public were present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information. 
  
Reason: Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information).  
7   Report on Investment Property Disposals (Pages 31 - 36) 

 
To consider the Confidential Report.   
  
  



 

 

8   Update on Asset Investment (Pages 37 - 42) 
 
To consider the Confidential Report. 
  
  



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 7

Agenda Annex

mailto:democraticservicesteam@somerset.gov.uk
https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/documents/s174/Part%20H2%20-%20Members%20Code%20of%20Conduct.pdf
mailto:democraticservicesteam@somerset.gov.uk


Page 8



 

 

 
 
Minutes of a Meeting of the Executive Property and Investments Sub-Committee held 
in the John Meikle Room (and the Victoria Room), The Deane House, TA1 1HE on 
Thursday 29 February 2024 at 10.00am 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Liz Leyshon (Chair) 
 
Cllr Richard Wilkins 
 
Cllr Sarah Wakefield 
 
Cllr Ros Wyke 
 

In attendance: 
 
Cllr Steve Ashton Cllr Norman Cavil  
Cllr Mandy Chilcott  Cllr Simon Coles 
Cllr Bob Filmer Cllr Henry Hobhouse 
Cllr Mike Murphy  
  

Other Members present remotely: 
 
 Cllr Tony Lock 
 

 

1 Apologies for Absence - Agenda Item 1 
 
Apologies were received from Cllr Bill Revans.  

2 Minutes - Agenda Item 2 
 
The minutes were agreed as an accurate record of the meeting and signed by the 
Chair subject to Cllr A Sully being added to the list of attendees, Cllr B Filmer’s 
attendance being in-person and the correction of a typographical error. 

 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 2



 

 

3 Declarations of Interest - Agenda Item 3 
 
Ros Wyke - Westbury-sub-Mendip Parish Council 
 

4 Public Question Time - Agenda Item 4 
 
At the invitation of the Chair, Alison Morgan addressed the Sub-Committee and 
raised a number of points as detailed in Appendix A to these minutes.  

5 Acknowledge Non-Treasury Investment Strategy - Agenda Item 5 
 
At the invitation of the Chair, the Executive Director – Resources and Corporate 
Services, Jason Vaughan, introduced the item noting: that the Policy had been 
considered by the Executive and approved by Full Council; and that a new strategy 
had been made necessary due to the intention to dispose of the Council’s 
commercial property portfolio.  

The Deputy Leader noted the Full Council amendment to request a review of the 
Strategy at the Financial Year mid-point.  

Following disruption in the room the meeting was adjourned at 10.19 and re-started 
at 10.30 

The Deputy Leader informed all present that meeting would again be suspended in 
the event of any further disruption. 

Following a further disruption in the room the meeting was again suspended at 10.31 
and re-started 10.51 

The Deputy Leader informed all present that agenda item 6 – Review of Performance 
Indicators for the Investment Portfolio and main risks to the programme would now 
be considered as the final item on the meeting agenda.  

6 Exclusion of the Press and Public - Agenda Item 7 
 
Having been duly proposed and seconded, the sub-committee proceeded to vote on 
a proposal to enter confidential session.  
 
Exclusion of the Press and Public  
The Executive sub-committee RESOLVED to pass a resolution under Schedule 12A of 
the Local Government Act 1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting, 
on the basis that if they were present during the business to be transacted there 
would be a likelihood of disclosure of exempt information, within the meaning of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972.  

Page 10



 

 

 
 

Due to the disruption in the John Meikle Room, the meeting was moved to the 
Victoria Room 

7 Market overview, disposal strategy and Decision for Investment Property 
Disposal - Agenda Item 8 
 
The sub-committee proceeded to discuss this confidential item with officers 
providing responses as appropriate. 
 

8 Asset Management Invest to grow recommendations  - Agenda Item 9 
 

The sub-committee proceeded to discuss this confidential item with officers 
providing responses as appropriate. 
 

9 Marketing of Asset - Agenda Item 10 
 
The sub-committee proceeded to discuss this confidential item with officers 
providing responses as appropriate. 
 

10 Review of performance indicators for the Investment Portfolio and main risks 
to the programme – Agenda Item 6 
 

At this point the confidential session ended and the meeting returned to public 

session. 

 

The Commercial Property and Land Development Manager, Robert Orrett noted: the 

previous agreement of the performance measures; that voids were currently in 

excess of 10% which is a higher than deemed acceptable; the potential for a 

measure of rent arrears; and the risk that much reporting work remains subject to 

manual processes. 

 

Members proceeded to debate the report and raised a number of points including: 

the potential for monies to still be paid into bank accounts belonging to predecessor 

council’s; the potential to outsource some rent collection work; and the key role of 

the Commercial Property and Land Development Manager and difficulty in recruiting 

individuals with relevant skills.  

 

Page 11



 

 

In response officers noted: outsourcing of work for properties with multiple tenants 

was being considered; that property management firms will present records in a 

format which is familiar to potential buyers. 

. 

Meeting Ended: 12:58 

. 

 

Chair ……………………………………….. 

Page 12



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 13



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

Page 14



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



 

 

6. 

 

Page 16



Risk Description Risk Outcome / 
Impact and 
Probability 
Assessment 

Impact 
(5 = 

Critical 
1 = Low) 

Probability 
(5 = High 
1 = Low) 

PRIORITY 
(Impact 

multiplied 
by 

Probability) 

Mitigation 

Officer team 
resources 

Key officers leaving 
at short notice due 
to any 
circumstances, may 
impact programme 
timings and 
outcomes. 

3 4 12 Expand external adviser 
activity and if required 
appoint a different internal 
client. Complete the 
Strategic Assets 
Management service 
restructure in an orderly 
manner without delays.  

Financial target 
timings changing  

Phased sales target 
cannot be met so 
further assets 
needing to be sold 
earlier than planned 

3 4 12 Carry out asset 
management more quickly 
and be ready to sell phase 
2 & 3 if required 

Market 
weakening 
further 

Reduces receipts 
from Property 
planned to be 
disposed of in future 
years 

5 2 10 Consider bringing forward 
further early sales 

National and 
International 
elections 
affecting 

Reduced value of 
sales and cost of 
borrowing for rest of 
portfolio 

3 3 9 Maintain awareness of 
macroeconomic conditions 
and reviewing against 
targets 

Page 17



macroeconomic 
conditions 

Commercially 
sensitive details 
are 
unintentionally 
made public 

Potential buyers or 
tenants being aware 
of the council’s 
commercial position, 
leading to sub-
optimal financial 
outcomes 

2 4 8 Discuss commercially 
sensitive details only in 
confidential sessions of 
sub-committee, 
attendance in-person only.  
Stress importance of 
confidentiality to 
attendees. 

Dependency on 
internal teams 
not prioritising 
project needs 

Control Boards 
approval and PO 
processing teams 

2 3 6 Discuss priorities and gain 
exemptions as appropriate 

Council 
governance 
mechanics 

Decision process 
holding up sales 

2 3 6 Gaining prior approval to 
sales over a certain price 
without further key 
decision reports being 
needed. 
Planning executed deeds in 
advance to ensure prompt 
execution. 

 

Page 18



 

 

 

 

 

Page 19

https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/documents/s22149/Task%20and%20Finish%20Report%20Commercial%20Invvestment%20Assets%20v4.pdf
https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/documents/s22149/Task%20and%20Finish%20Report%20Commercial%20Invvestment%20Assets%20v4.pdf


 

 

 

Page 20



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



 

 

 

Page 22



 

10.      

 

 

 

 

Page 23



 

 

 

 

Page 24



 

 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Property Identifier Postal Address Postal Town Postcode County Sector Tenure

Wickes Extra Tameside Park Birmingham B42 2ET Birmingham City Retail Freehold

Lyndon Place 2096 Coventry Road, Sheldon Birmingham B26 3YU Birmingham City Other Freehold

54 Willis Way, Poole 54 Willis Way Poole BH15 3SY Bournemouth Christchurch and Poole Other Freehold

The Ralph Globe Business Park, Fourth Avenue Marlow SL7 1YG Buckinghamshire Other Freehold

Audi, Cardiff Wagtail Close Cardiff CF23 8RT Cardiff Other Freehold

430 Bristol Business Park Coldharbour Lane Bristol BS16 1EJ City of Bristol Office Freehold

Applegreen Petrol Filling Station, Bristol Gloucester Road, Horfield Bristol BS7 8NL City of Bristol Other Freehold

600-650 Aztec West, Bristol 600-650 Aztec West Bristol BS32 4SD City of Bristol Office Freehold

Boots, Truro 93/94 Pydar Street Truro TR1 2BD Cornwall Retail Freehold

Cornwall Food Production Unit Barncoose Industrial Estate, Barncoose Redruth TR15 3RQ Cornwall Industrial Freehold

Centurion Mill Kestrel Way, Sowton Industrial Estate Exeter EX2 7LA Devon Industrial Freehold

Howmet Ltd, Sowton, Exeter Sowton, Exeter Exeter EX2 7LB Devon Industrial Freehold

D1 Christchurch Business Park Radar Way Christchurch BH23 4FL Dorset Industrial Freehold

Fenick House Lister Way Glasgow G72 0FT Glasgow Office Freehold

730 Aztec West Waterside Drive Bristol BS32 4UE Gloucester Office Freehold

Units 1 and 2 Barnwood Industrial Estate Barnwood Gloucester GL4 3RT Gloucester Industrial Freehold

Alchemy Alchemy House, Bessemer Road Welwyn Garden City AL7 1HE Hertfordshire Office Freehold

Reflex Group, Barwell 29 Moat Way Barwell LE9 8EY Leicestershire Industrial Freehold

Bell House Seebeck Place, Knowlhill Milton Keynes MK5 8FR Milton Keynes Office Freehold

Unit 1 New House Farm Industrial Estate Mathern Chepstow NP16 6UD Monmouthshire Industrial Freehold

Imperial House Imperial Way, Coedkernew Newport NP10 8UH Newport City Office Freehold

Reevesland Industrial Estate Caswell Way, Reevesland Industrial Estate Newport NP19 4YH Newport City Industrial Freehold

North Shields Retail Park Norham Road North Shields NE29 7UJ North Tyneside Retail Freehold

Unit 2B Commerce Park Commerce Park Frome BA11 2FB Somerset Industrial Freehold

Wilko, Yeovil 88-92 Middle Street Yeovil BA20 1LT Somerset Retail Freehold

B&Q Glastonbury Wirrall Park, Wirrall Park Road Glastonbury BA6 9XE Somerset Retail Freehold

Northgate Yard Mount Street Bridgwater TA6 3FQ Somerset Leisure Freehold

Unit 1, Dunball Industrial Estate Trelleborg, Dunball Industrial Estate, Dunball Bridgwater TA6 4TP Somerset Industrial Freehold

St John's Retail Park Priory Way Taunton TA1 2BB Somerset Retail Freehold

M&S, Yeovil 5 Middle Street Yeovil BA20 1LE Somerset Retail Freehold

Trafalgar House Cornishway North, Galmington Trading Estate Taunton TA1 5LY Somerset Industrial Freehold

Street Retail Park Gravenchon Way Street BA16 0GX Somerset Retail Freehold

Costa Coffee Wirrall Park, Wirrall Park Road Glastonbury BA6 9XE Somerset Retail Freehold

The Leggar Retail Park The Leggar Bridgwater TA6 4AF Somerset Retail Freehold

B&Q, Heathfield Rd Heathfield Road Ayr KA8 9TB South Ayrshire Retail Freehold

Steelite, Stoke on Trent Newcastle Street Stoke-On-Trent ST6 3RB Stoke-on-Trent Industrial Freehold

DFS, Swindon Wootton Basset Road Swindon SN5 8WF Swindon Retail Freehold

JLR, Stockton-on-Tees Concord Way Stockton On Tees TS18 3RB Teeside Other Freehold

Reflex Group, Ossett Smith Way Ossett WF5 9JZ West Yorkshire Industrial Freehold

The Range, Pellon Lane Pellon Lane Halifax HX1 5QE West Yorkshire Retail Freehold

27-29 Sherwood Road 27-29 Sherwood Road Bromsgrove B60 3DR Worcestershire Industrial Freehold

TK Maxx, Worcester 48-50 High Street Worcester WR1 2QB Worcestershire Retail Freehold

The Square car park Richmond Hill Bournemouth BH2 6EJ Dorset Other Leasehold

One Quinton Business Park The Ridgeway Birmingham B32 1AF Birmingham City Office Leasehold

King William House 13 Queen Square Bristol BS1 4NT City of Bristol Office Leasehold

Fermentation Building Hawkins Lane, Redcliffe Bristol BS1 6bx City of Bristol Office Leasehold

Jacobs Building (ex. Linden House) 23 Berkeley Place Bristol BS8 1EH City of Bristol Office Leasehold

Faringdon Retail Park, Phase II Henry Blake Way Faringdon SN7 7GQ Oxfordshire Other Leasehold

The Clink Retail Park The Leggar Bridgwater TA6 4AF Somerset Retail Leasehold

Battery Energy Storage Schemes

Scheme Identifier Postal Address Postal Town Postcode Capacity (MW) Loan amount Estimated loan 

balances at 

31/3/23

SC 

Dividend 

Share

Fideoak Mill Bishops Hull Taunton TA4 1AF 28 £13,157,055 £8,120,155 50%

Fareham 1 Tanners Lane Fareham PO14 1BL 40 £18,690,000 £16,831,027 65%

Fareham 2 Tanners Lane Fareham PO14 1BL 20 £10,630,877 £9,815,602 70%

BESS assets are owned via a JV company structure

SSDC Opium Power Limited 50 shares owned by SC; 50 shares owned by Opium Power Limited

which in turn owns

Fareham Energy Reserve Limited dividend distribution 65/35

Fareham Energy Reserve 2 Limited dividend distribution 70/30

Aspen Court Development Ltd 

Scheme Identifier Postal Address Postal Town Postcode County Sector Tenure

Aspen Court Wembden Road Bridgwater TA6 7EN Somerset Housing Freehold

Aspen Court Development Ltd is wholly owned by Sedgemoor Group Ltd which is owned by Somerset Council

Revised 15 April 2024

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Somerset Council 
 
Notice of private meeting 

 
  

 
The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access 
to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 – Regulation 5 
Following prior publication in the Forward Plan February 2024, in accordance 
with the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 
Information) (England) Regulations 2012 – Regulation 5, notice is hereby 
given that the Executive Sub-Committee is requested to consider agreeing a 
resolution at its Meeting on 15 April 2024 to exclude the press and public 
from any part of the meeting where exempt information relating to the items 
below is to be disclosed: 
 
Report on investment property sales   
Executive Member(s): Lead Member for Economic Development, Planning & 
Assets 
Lead Officer: Oliver Woodhams, Strategic Asset Management Service Director 
Author:  Robert Orrett, Commercial Property and Land Development Manager 
Contact Details: Robert.Orrett@somerset.gov.uk 
 
Update on Asset Investment   
Executive Member(s): Lead Member for Economic Development, Planning & 
Assets 
Lead Officer: Oliver Woodhams, Strategic Asset Management Service Director 
Author:  Robert Orrett, Commercial Property and Land Development Manager 
Contact Details: Robert.Orrett@somerset.gov.uk 
 

Reasons for the items to be considered in private session at the meeting 
Local Government Act 1972 – Schedule 12A 
The item is likely to contain information relating to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that 
information). 
 
Representations received to hold the item in open session 
None. 

Page 29

Agenda Annex



 
Council’s response to representations received  
Not applicable. 
 
Circulation: 
 
All Somerset Council Members 
Council’s website 
 
5 April 2024 
David Clark – Monitoring Officer 
 

For questions about this notice please contact Mike Bryant, Democratic 
Services, County Hall, Taunton, TA1 4DY.  
Tel: 01823 357628 Email:  mike.bryant@somerset.gov.uk    

Page 30



Document is Restricted

Page 31

Agenda Item 7
By virtue of 
Regulation 21(1)(A) of the Local Authorities (Executive
Arrangements) (Access to Information) (England)
Regulations 2000.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 37

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of 
Regulation 21(1)(A) of the Local Authorities (Executive
Arrangements) (Access to Information) (England)
Regulations 2000.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	 Public Guidance Notes contained in Agenda Annexe
	2 Minutes from the Previous Meeting
	Appendix A

	5 Review performance indicators for the Investment Portfolio and main risks to the programme
	6 Revision to the scope of the Investment portfolio
	Item 6 Appendix A  Commercial investment assets portfolio April 2024

	 Exclusion of the Press and Public
	7 Report on Investment Property Disposals
	8 Update on Asset Investment

